
September 15, 2022 Consultation Council Meeting Minutes 
“Digest” means an item has been through internal review by the Chancellor’s Office and the review entities. 
The item now has form and substance and is officially “entered into Consultation.” The Consultation Council 
reviews the item and provides advice to the Chancellor. 

Page 1 of 5 

Executive Vice Chancellor Navarette called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 

The following Consultation Council (Council) members were present: 
Mario Rodriguez (substitute for Aaron Brown), Cheryl Aschenbach, Clemaus Tervalon,  
Jeffrey Michels, Jose Fierro, Julianna Mosier, Kaneesha Tarrant, Larry Galizio, Manuel Payan, 
Marisa Perez, Tram Vo-Kumamoto, Virginia "Ginni" May, Wendy Brill-Wynkoop, Wyman Fong 

CONSULTATION COUNCIL ACRONYMS AND INITIALISMS 
ACBO Association of Chief Business Officers 
ACCCA Association of California Community College Administrators 
ACHRO/EEO Association of Chief Human Resources Officers/Equal Employment Officers 
ASCCC Academic Senate for the California Community Colleges 
CCA/CTA Community College Association/California Teachers Association 
CCC/CFT Community College Council/California Federation of Teachers 
CCCAOE California Community College Association for Occupational Education 
CCCCIO California Community Colleges Chief Instructional Officers 
CCCI California Community College Independents 
CCCT California Community College Trustees 
CCE/CFT Council of Classified Employees/California Federation of Teachers 
CCLC Community College League of California 
CEOCCC Chief Executive Officers of the California Community Colleges 
CSEA California School Employees Association 
CSSO Chief Student Services Officers 
FACCC Faculty Association of the California Community Colleges 
SSCCC Student Senate for California Community Colleges 

AGENDA DIGEST ITEMS 

Digest Item 1.2: Chancellor's Office Update (Executive Vice Chancellor Navarette) 
The Chancellor’s Office (CO) presented updates on relevant developments and time-sensitive 
changes including digest items previously presented that may require additional consultation. 

Discussion Summary: 
• CSEA celebrated the Chancellor’s Office women leaders.

A11Y 10/17/22



Page 2 of 5 
 

Digest Item 1.3: Student Senate Update (SSCCC President Tervalon and SSCCC Vice 
President of Legislative Affairs Wooden) 
This digest item presented updates on the SSCCC current initiatives, legislative stances, 
system participation, and the status of the SSCCC Board of Directors. 

Discussion Summary: 
• CCLC discussed the University of California and California State University systems 

support of the California Community Colleges Baccalaureate Degree program. 

• ASCCC complimented the SSCCC on their conflict resolution training. 

• CSEA echoed CCLC comments on Baccalaureate Degree support and encouraged 
discussions with local assembly state senate.  

Digest Item 1.4: Social Determinants of Educational Success Ecosystem: A 
Deep Look at Zero Textbook Cost (Executive Vice Chancellor Alvarado and Vice 
Chancellor Ruan-O'Shaughnessy) 
This digest item provided an update on the California Community Colleges' approach to the 
implementation of the Social Determinants for Educational Success framework through the 
lens of the Zero Textbook Cost (ZTC) program. 

Discussion Summary: 
• CCCI expressed their support and inquired about unconditional belonging. 

• CSSO discussed equitable access and categorical programs. 

• FACCC inquired about funding on instructional materials. 

• ASCCC expressed support to increase student access to high quality and structural 
materials. 

• CCCT inquired about successful programs from a student perspective. 

• CEOCCC encouraged long-term solutions. 

• CCCCIO expressed their support for building infrastructure. 

• ASCCC detailed a partnership with CCLC and requested ongoing funding for Open 
Educational Resources (OER). 

• CSEA inquired about a CO status report to the Legislature. 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Digest Item 1.5: Participatory Governance Handbook and Statewide 
Engagement (Executive Vice Chancellor Alvarado and Assistant Vice Chancellor 
Martinez) 
This digest item responded to the request for information from the Board of Governors to 
report on all statewide participatory governance structures by the Chancellor's Office, 
including statewide advisory committees, workgroups, and task forces. 

Discussion Summary: 
• ASCCC inquired about the Assembly Bill 1111 Task force, the modern policing program, 

and the transfer distinguished panel. 

• SSCCC praised the CO’s efforts and emphasized student representation on task forces. 

• CCCCIO requested a main point of contact for the Participatory Governance Handbook 
and offered suggestions for future handbook updates. 

• FACCC inquired about the process of updating the handbook. 

• ASCCC suggested streamlining the handbook updates. 

• CSSO suggested a timeline adjustment and expressed interest in including the 
Participatory Governance Handbook in their meetings. 

• SSCCC offered suggestions for future handbook updates. 

Digest Item 1.6: 2021-2022 Enrollment Update and Early Data from Fall 
2022 Student Survey (Executive Vice Chancellor Hetts and Executive Vice Chancellor 
Alvarado) 
This digest item provided an update and opportunity to discuss changes in student 
headcount from 2019-2020 to 2021-2022 and preliminary results from the statewide survey 
of potential, current, and former students who had previously applied to the California 
Community Colleges as a follow-up to discussion from the Council meeting on August 18, 
2022. 

Discussion Summary: 
• SSCCC expressed concerns about the drop in student enrollment and acknowledged the 

importance of contacting the student population. 

• CCCCIO inquired about the data regarding the loss of the Asian Pacific Islander student 
population. 

• CSSO highlighted the distinction between retention data and non-enrollment data. 

• ASCCC inquired about survey outreach. 



Page 4 of 5 
 

• CCCT encouraged a review of the CCCApply application process. 

• FACCC inquired about partnering with the CO and Council groups on legislation 
regarding college affordability, basic needs, and work-life balance for students. 

• CCCI discussed daycare, flexible scheduling, and issues with applying and registering to 
the CCC system. 

• CCLC highlighted the upcoming Board of Governors meeting at which four CEO 
representatives would address enrollment strategy, management, persistence, and 
student success initiatives. 

Digest Item 1.7: Baccalaureate Degree Program Implementation Update 
(Vice Chancellor Lowe) 
This digest item provided an update on Baccalaureate Degree Program implementation, 
and presented the programs approved by the Board of Governors President. 

Discussion Summary: 
• SSCCC inquired about the ten applications submitted. 

• CCCT inquired about nursing legislation. 

• FACCC praised the CO’s efforts, and suggested partnerships. 

• CCCCIO inquired about pre-application process. 

Digest Item 1.8: State and Federal Update (Vice Chancellor O’Brien) 
The Chancellor’s Office Government Relations Division provided the Council with a State 
and Federal Update, as well as an update on Undocumented Student Action Week 2022. 

Discussion Summary: 
• CSEA inquired about the appeals court process. 

• FACCC thanked the CO for their work and advocacy. 

Digest Item 1.7: Other (Executive Vice Chancellor Navarette) 
This digest item provided members of the Council an opportunity to make announcements 
or seek collaborations that will help our system better serve students. 

Discussion Summary: 
• FACCC requested a future conversation on shared legislative priorities. 

• ACCCA thanked the CO for their work. 



Page 5 of 5 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 1:02 p.m. 


	Consultation Council Acronyms and Initialisms
	Agenda Digest items
	Digest Item 1.2: Chancellor's Office Update (Executive Vice Chancellor Navarette)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.3: Student Senate Update (SSCCC President Tervalon and SSCCC Vice President of Legislative Affairs Wooden)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.4: Social Determinants of Educational Success Ecosystem: A Deep Look at Zero Textbook Cost (Executive Vice Chancellor Alvarado and Vice Chancellor Ruan-O'Shaughnessy)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.5: Participatory Governance Handbook and Statewide Engagement (Executive Vice Chancellor Alvarado and Assistant Vice Chancellor Martinez)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.6: 2021-2022 Enrollment Update and Early Data from Fall 2022 Student Survey (Executive Vice Chancellor Hetts and Executive Vice Chancellor Alvarado)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.7: Baccalaureate Degree Program Implementation Update (Vice Chancellor Lowe)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.8: State and Federal Update (Vice Chancellor O’Brien)
	Discussion Summary:

	Digest Item 1.7: Other (Executive Vice Chancellor Navarette)
	Discussion Summary:


	Adjournment



